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Leager Farm or "Woodridge Corrected” c. 1790 & 1810
Millington vicinity

Private

The Leager Farm house is another of Queen Anne's
County's farm dwellings which -wemplifies the additive
principle of vernacular architecture. 1Its first section,
the easternmost section, is only part of its original
self. In its original form it had the present two bay, two
story section with a one story wing, all built of brick.
Its plan consisted of a hall and kitchen(?}. A short
time thereafter, the house was enlarged with a stair hall
and l#ving room addition, taller than its earlier parti,
thus creating a telescovic form, so common in Maryland.
Although the mantels have been removed, the remaining
paneling, gouge-work chair rail and graceful 3-flight
stair is outstanding.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {iF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Leager Farm House is located in the Seventh
District of Queen Anne's County, on the north
corner of the intersection of Peters Corner Road
and Sudlersville Cemetery Road, between Millington
and Sudlersville.

The house faces southeast and is composed of
two brick sections on this facade and a frame
wing on the back. The earliest part of the house
is the present dining room, on the northéast end,
which was constructed around 1790. Twenty to thirty
years later, the taller brick structure was added

to the southwest gable of the original, Around

1910, a2 frame two story section with porch was built

b4

CONTINUE

behind ﬁhé dining room. From that period very little
has happened to the building, with the result that
the ﬁouse has a feeling of antiguity found in few
houses of the period.

Its southeast facade is laid in ?lemish bond
above the basement window, and common bond below.
All other walls are laid in common bond (5 course
in 1790 section; 7 course in 1810 section). No
decorative features, i.e. water table, belt course,

window heads, are employed in the brickwork.

ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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7.1 DESCRIPTION

However, the cornice of the 1810 section makes up for
the lack of ornamentation, for there is a dentil course
in the bed molding. The windowsoriginally had 9/6 sash
on the first story and 6/6 sash above., The earlier
wing had 6/6 sash on both floors and the cornice is
plain and lower than the later section.

The entrance in the center bay has the remains of

wood trim, with @rossettes paneled jambks and a 3-pane

‘
transom over the 6-panel door. The outline of an early
porch can be traced around the entrance. There is &
stone threshold.

On the earlier section, two vertical lines in the
brickwork near the outer window indicate the original
entrance to this section, which was filled in at the
time of the first addition. The northeast gable of
this section has traces of plaster on the wall as well
as uneven brickwork at the corners and a brick-filled
doorway. The one story section which once stococd here
was probably removed when the frame wing was added
around the turn of this century. In its early form,
the house would ﬁave been telescopic.

The frame wing is built on a foundation of old brick
probably salvaged frem the old kitchen. It is two bays
long and the walls are covered with asbestos siding

over plain weatherboard. On its south side is a
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7.2 DESCRIPTION

lean-to porch.

The southwest gable of the 1810 section has a
chimney projecting 9" ffom the face of the brick.
Above the second story fireplace, it tapers in on three
sides. Flanking this chimney on the first story are
two original windows. There are none elsewhere on

the gable. Original tapered barge boards remain on

the gable, with bead on the lower edge and added

' molding adjacent the shingles.

A basement bulkhead is located on the northwest
side of the house. The door, located west of center,
was bricked in when a bath ﬁas inséélled in the hall.
Both cellar windows are also bricked in. The cornice
is the same on this side éf the house.

Since the brick house was built at two different
times, it also has two basements,which are unconnected.
They both have the same plan as the rooms above. They
both appear to have dirt floors.. Basement window_frames
with horizontal bars are loose in the‘basement. The
bars alternate wood and iron. '

The plan of the house consists of a central stair
hall with living room to the west and dining room to
the east. Behind the dining room is the frame kitchen.

The living room has a projecting chimney breast, but

the mantel has been removed. (From memory, it had a
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L 7.3 DESCRIPTION

‘pair of colonettes on each side, and rows of gouge work
and dentils at the top). Other trim remains, including
baseboard, chair rail with intermittent gougework
panels and window trim with crossettes. The six windows
in the living room all have recessed panel jambs, the
o panéis being reeded. The plaster walls and ceiling
have many coats of whiteyash. Floorboards range in
‘width from 4"-5" and are ali edge grain yellow pine.

The stair hall has had a bath.installed under the.
upper flights of the stair, but:the'fiXturééwﬁévé'been
removed. The stair ascends in“ﬁhrée'flighps,tO'the
second floor, and again to Ehe aﬁéic. .it;ﬁés an open-
string balustrade with two rectangular balusters per
step, scréiled step ends and.a.paneled séaﬁ@rél, The
handrail ascends over the newels, whiéh.aregtufnéd.
Hidden by the bath is the doorﬁay to £h§ Celiéf,'
Remaining trim does not have crossetteé,‘- o

Both doors from the hall have réiséd éaneis.
énd jambs. The dining room door is adjacent the fire-
place and occupies the place of an 6riginal stair, A
vefy good wall of raised paneling exists.across the
fireplace and cupboard on the hall wall. The two
windows on the southeast wall retain original wide
trim, chair rail and baseboard. A line in the baseboard,

.chéi; rail and plaster is a clear indication of the
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7.4 DESCRIPTION

former stair, removed when the 1810 wing was added.

The kitchen is qguite plain, with board dado and
plaster above. There is a small enclesed stair in the
northwest corner adjacent a chimney flue, with a door
on the opposite side. A large closet-like enclosure
adjacent the dining room actually contains the stair to
the dining room basement. On the porch, adjacent the
aforesaid enclosure, is a makeshift panitry.

Ascending the stair to the first landing, a door
on the right leads to several steps to the dining room
chamber, a very plain room with bricked-up fireplace
and a closeﬁ and stair. Its window trim issimilar
to Great Hopes, nearby. Patches in the plaster ceiling
indicate that this room was originally divided into
stair passage and tiny chamber, on the southeast, each
with a single window, and a larger chamber on the
southwesgt, with fireplace and two windows.

over the kitchen and connected to the dining room
chamber are two small rooms, devcid of any ornamentation.

Returning to the stairhall, there is a small room
over the front door and a living room chamber. Both
rooms have the same trim, which is simpler than the
first floor. Like the first floor, the living roomn
chamber mantel is missing. The window jambs here are

plain.
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7.5 DESCRIPTION

Over the first landing to the attic is an original
gable window from the 1790's section. Although the
partitions, etc. are in very bad conditicn and/or
removed, evidence points to the stair hall of the
attic being plastered and having had a dormer on each
side. The adjoining attic room also had two dormers,
all which have been removed. One dormer cheek has
been nailed onto the partition. The rafters appear,
in the dim light, tc be mortise, tenon and peg con-
struction at the apex with half-dovetail and nailed

collars.
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i,

The Leager Farm house is another of Queen
Anne's County's farm dwellings which exemplifies
the additive principle of vernacular architecture.
Its first section, the easternmost section, is only
part of its original self. 1In its original form
it had the present two bay, two story section with
a one story wing, all built of brick. Its plan
consisted of a hall and kitchen(?). A short
time thereafter, the house was enlarged with a
stair hall and living room additioﬁ; téller than
its @arliex part, thus creating a telescopic form,
so common in Maryland. Although the mantels ﬁaver
been removed, the remaining paneling, gouge-work

chair rail and graceful 3-flight stairare outstanding.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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QA-12 Leager Farm
Southeast elevation

MOB 1/1983







QA-12 Leager Farm

West

MOB 1/1983







QA-12 Julian Leager Farm
Sudlersville vicinity
Michael 0. Bourne
Interior, paneled cupboard







QA-12 Julian Leager Farm
Sudlersville vicinity
Michael O. Bourne
Interior, paneled chimney
breast




